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  Agenda
   

 
 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee 
 

Anderson Room, City Hall 
6911 No. 3 Road 

Tuesday, January 24, 2012 
4:00 p.m. 

 
 
Pg. # ITEM  
 
  

MINUTES 
 
PRCS-5  Motion to adopt the minutes of the meetings of the Parks, Recreation and 

Cultural Services Committee held on Tuesday, November 29, 2011 and 
Wednesday, December 14, 2011. 

 

 
 
  

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 
 
  Tuesday, February 28, 2012 (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson 

Room 

 
 
  

DELEGATION 
 
  Bonnie Beaman, Chairperson and Hayley Huculak, Coordinator, Richmond 

Fitness & Wellness Association, to provide an update on the Walk Richmond 
Program. 
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Tuesday, January 24, 2012 

Pg. # ITEM  
 

PRCS – 2 

  
COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 
PRCS-63 2. RICHMOND POTTERS CLUB'S CONCERNS AT THE RICHMOND 

ARTS CENTRE 
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 3430731 v.3) 

  TO VIEW eREPORT CLICK HERE 

  See Page PRCS-63 of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services agenda for full hardcopy report 

  Designated Speaker:  Kim Somerville

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  That the staff report entitled “Richmond Potters Club’s concerns at the 
Richmond Arts Centre” dated January 10, 2012 from the Director, Arts, 
Culture and Heritage Services, be received for information. 

 
PRCS-71 3. CURRENT ISSUES THAT MAY BE IMPACTING RICHMOND 

ADOLESCENTS 
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 3400664 v.3) 

  TO VIEW eREPORT CLICK HERE 

  See Page PRCS-71 of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services agenda for full hardcopy report 

  Designated Speaker:  Kate Rudelier

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  (1) That the report dated January 9, 2012, Current Issues That May Be 
Impacting Richmond Adolescents, be received for information; and 

  (2) That a copy of the report be sent to the Council/School Board Liaison 
Committee for information. 

PRCS-33 1. RICHMOND 2011 ARTS UPDATE
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 3428841) 

  TO VIEW eREPORT CLICK HERE 

  See Page PRCS-33 of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services agenda for full hardcopy report 

  Designated Speaker:  Kim Somerville

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  That the Richmond 2011 Arts Update be received for information. 
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Pg. # ITEM  
 

PRCS – 3 

 
  

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 
PRCS-81 4. RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION UPDATE 

(File Ref. No. 01-0100-20-RATH1) (REDMS No. 2724801) 

  TO VIEW eREPORT CLICK HERE 

  See Page PRCS-81 of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services agenda for full hardcopy report 

  Designated Speaker:  Mike Redpath

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  That the staff report entitled “Richmond Athletic Commission Update” from 
the Senior Manager, Parks be received for information. 

 
PRCS-107 5. INCUBATOR FARMING 

(File Ref. No. 08-4040-08-01) (REDMS No. 3381720) 

  TO VIEW eREPORT CLICK HERE 

  See Page PRCS-107 of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services agenda for full hardcopy 
report  

  Designated Speaker:  Serena Lusk

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

  That: 

  (1) the license of approximately 4.5 acres of land at 13871 No. 3 Road and 
13891 No. 3 Road to the Richmond Food Security Society for the 
purposes of incubator farming at a rental rate of $250 per acre per year 
for a three-year term be approved as identified in the attached report, 
Incubator Farming, from the Senior Manager, Parks; 

  (2) staff be authorized to take all necessary steps to complete all matters 
detailed herein including authorizing the Chief Administrative Officer 
and the General Manager, Parks and Recreation to negotiate and 
execute all documentation required to effect the transaction; 

  (3) staff continue to work with Kwantlen Polytechnic University to identify 
and secure the use of both public and private lands for the purposes of 
Incubator Farming in relation to its Farm School program; and 

  (4) $12,000 be allocated from the Council Contingency Fund to the 
Richmond Food Security Society (RFSS) should its application to the 
Real Estate Foundation of BC for a grant of $35,000 to support the 
RFSS’s Richmond Foodlands Strategic Plan be successful. 
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 6. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
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Date: 

Place: 

Present: 

Absent: 

City of 
Richmond 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 

Tuesday, November 29,2011 

Anderson Room 
Richmond City Hall 

Councillor Harold Steves, Chair 
Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt, Vice-Chair 
Councillor Ken Johnston 
Councillor Bill McNulty 

Councillor Sue Halsey-Brandt 

Minutes 

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

341 9450 

MINUTES 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat tire minutes of the meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Cultural 
Services Committee held on Tuesday, October 25, 2011, be adopted as 
circulated. 

CARRIED 

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 

Wedn..esdav. Dectmber 14 (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson Room 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

I. REQUEST TO EXTEND THE TEMPORARY EXHIBITION OF THE 
PUBLIC ARTWORK "Wll'o'D WA YES" 
(Fi le Rer. No. 11 -7Q00-09-20-099) (REDMS No. 3408489) 

I. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, November 29, 2011 

It was moved and seconded 
That Ihe extended temporary exhibition a/the artwork "Wind Waves" until 
the end of August 2012 at Garry Point Park in Richmond~ as outlined in the 
staff report dated November 16, 201 J from the Director, Arts, Cultllre & 
Heritage, be approved. 

CARRIED 

2. MAINTENANCE AND MANAGEMENT OF THE FLEET AT 
BRITANNIA 
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 3405577) 

in reply to queries from Committee, Robert James, 13400 Princess Street, and 
Don Rolls. 4133 Cavendish Drive, members of the Britannia Heritage 
Shipyard Society, provided the following information: 

• as part of the decommissioning of the Shuchona IV, all contaminants 
removed from the vessel will be discharged appropriately; and 

• the Shuchona IV is primarily made up of wood, as such there are 
minimal concerns regarding the discharge of fibreglass. 

It was moved and seconded 
Tltat tlte staff report regarding tlte Maintenance and Management of the 
fleet at Britannia dated November 15,2011 from tlte Director, Arts, Culture 
and Heritage Services, be received for information. 

CARRIED 

In reply to a query from the Chair, Mr. James and Mr. Rolls stated that the 
Society would be pleased to continue working with the City on the 
maintenance and management of the fleet at the Shipyard. As a result, the 
following referral was introduced: 

It was moved and seconded 
Tlrat staf/report back on: 

(1) cost estimates for the restoration of tire remaining vessels at the 
Britannia Heritage Slripyard,. and 

(2) cost estimates for the restoraJion 0/ tire Fleetwood for the following 
types of displays: 

(a) a restoration suitable/or the vessel to be on stationary display; 

(b) a restoration tlrat restores the vessel as much as possible as it 
currently stands in its modified condition; and 

(c) a full restoration that brings the vessel back to its original 
condition. 

2. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, November 29, 2011 

The question on the referral was not called as discussion ensued and 
Committee noted that when reporting back, staff should also address the 
following: (i) what is the priority of the restoration of the various vessels; (ii) 
what funding sources would be utilized for the restorations; (iii) whether a 
fundraising program would be feasible as a source of funding for the 
restorations; and (iv) what type of timeline can be anticipated for these 
restorations. 

The question on the referral was then called and it was CARRIED. 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

3. PROPOSED ANNUAL INFLATIONARY INCREASE IN PLAYING 
FIELD USER FEES 
(File Rer. No.) (REDMS No. 3377997) 

It was moved and seconded 
(1) Thai p/ayingjie/d user fees be annually increased by an amount equal 

to the previous year's Consumer Price Index for Greater Vancouver, 
effective January 2012, and that the applicable fees be included in the 
annual Consolidated Fees Bylaw for 2013,' and 

(2) Tltat 2012 playingfield user fees be increased by 1.75%. 

The question on the motion was not cal led as in reply to a query from 
Committee, Eric Stepura, Manager, Sports & Community Events, advised that 
field users that go through the City'S rentals office have the privilege of 
receiving dedicated time slots for field use. Staff address concerns regarding 
ad-hoc field users on a complaint basis. 

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRfED. 

4. GARRATT WELLNESS CENTRE, NEW LICENCE 
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 34(4098) 

It was moved and seconded 
(1) That the City enter into a new licence agreement with Vancouver 

Coastal Health Authority for a term of jive years, pillS an option to 
renew for a further term of five years, at an annual licence fee of 
11.00, and on the other terms and conditions set out in the staff 
report dated November 16, 2011; and 

(2) That staff be authorized 10 take all necessary steps to complete all 
matters detailed herein including authorizing the Chief 
Administrative Officer and the General Manager, Parks and 
Recreation to negotiate and execute all documentation required to 
eJJecttlte transaction. 

CARRIED 

3. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, November 29, 2011 

s. MANAGER'S REPORT 

(i) Parks Update 

Mike Redpath, Senior Manager. Parks, provided an update on various parks 
department activities: 

• the cleaning of the Railway Avenue corridor is nearly complete; 

• piling at Imperial Landing is nearly complete and will be followed by 
the installation of floats in the upcoming weeks; 

• statT are clearing several sites along Odlin Road, near Tomsen 
Elementary school in preparation of a new neighbourhood park; and 

• staff are removing invasive species at the fenner Fantasy Gardens site as 
part or the site's park plan. 

In reply to a queries from Committee, Mr. Redpath advised that staff are 
examining past agreements between the City and owners of properties along 
the Railway Avenue corridor. He noted that the majority of the agreements 
have expired. In addition, Mr. Redpath remarked that staff would examine an 
aU-metal bench at the west-end of River Road in relation to its comfort for 
users. 

Ted deCrom. Acting Manager Parks Operations, commented on the City'S 
commitment for snow removal and highlighted that the installation of 
Christmas lights throughout the City would be completed shortly. 

Serena Lusk, Manager, Parks Programs, provided an update on the City' S 
snow geese management plan and commented on high call volumes as a result 
of an effective awareness campaign. Also. Ms. Lusk advised that the Snow 
Angels program is active and currently recruiting volunteers. However, she 
staled that Snow Angels services are only provided following major snowfall. 
which is defmed as 48-hours of snowfaU with an accumulation of fifteen or 
more centimetres of snow. 

Ms. Lusk spoke of the Richmond Animal Protection Society's Dog Adopt-A­
Than and distributed a copy of the campaign's advertisement (copy on file, 
City Clerk' s Office). 

(ii) Steveston Tram Track 

Elizabeth Ayers, Manager, Community Recreation Services, referenced a 
memorandum dated November 25, 2011 (copy on file , City Clerk's Office) 
and advised that staff was quoted a cost of $150 per foot for supply and 
installation of track. She noted that staff currently do not see the need for any 
additional track to be added to the site. 

4. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Tuesday, November 29, 2011 

(iii) Arts Services Update 

Kim Somerville, Manager, Arts Services, provided an update on the Cultural 
Centre's upcoming events. Also, she referenced a recent article in a local 
newspaper regarding the public art piece "Wind Waves". She stated that in 
April 20 II , Council resolved to take no further action in regards to the 
acquisition of Biennale art¥Iork. 

Discussion ensued regarding the Riclunond Potters Club. The Chair 
encouraged that a staff report on the Club's concerns be drafted as it would 
provide the Club with an opportunity to meet with the Committee. 

ADJOURNMENT 

It was moved and seconded 
That the meeting adjouTII (4:30 p.m). 

Councillor Harold Steves 
Chair 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the Parks, 
Recreation & Cultural Senrices Committee 
of the Council of the City of Richmond held 
on Tuesday, November 29, 201]. 

Hanieh Floujeh 
Committee Clerk 

s. 
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Date: 

Place: 

Present: 

Absent: 

City of 
Richmond 

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 

Wednesday, December 14, 2011 

Anderson Room 
Richmond City Hall 

Councillor Harold Steves, Chair 
Councillor Linda Barnes 
Councillor Bill McNulty 
Mayor Malcolm Brodie 

Councillor Ken Johnston, Vice-Chair 
Councillor Evelina Halsey-Brandt 

Minutes 

Also Present: Councillor Chak Au (entered at 4:04 p.m.) 
Councillor Linda McPhail 

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

COUNCILLOR HAROLD STEVES 

I. PHOENlXNETWFf 
(File Ref. No.) 

The Chair spoke of development along the Steveston waterfront. in particular 
the Phoenix Net Loft building. 

Discussion ensued regarding the Phoenix Net Loft building and copies of 
three past documents related to the usage of the Phoenix Net Loft building 
were distributed: (i) Background Open House Results ~ Imperial Landing 
Waterfront; (ii) Site Analysis and Development Plan - Be Packers (the 
Steveston Properties) ; and (iii) Phoenix Net Loft Artists' Market (attached to 
and fonning part of these Minutes as Schedule I). 

As a result of the discussion, the following referral was introduced: 

I. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Wednesday, December 14, 2011 

It was moved and seconded 
That the three documents related to the Phoenix Net Loft building 
(Background Open House Results - Imperial Landing Waterfront, Site 
Analysis and Development Plan - Be Packers: The Steveston Properties, 
and Phoenil: Net Loft Artists' Market) be referred to staff to be considered 
in conjunction with the development of the Steveston water/ronl. 

COUNCILLOR LINDA BARNES 

2. JACK-O-LANTERN EVENT 
(File Ref No.) 

CARRIED 

Discussion ensued regarding a jack-o-Iantern event held annually in the City 
of Nanaimo. It was noted that after Halloween. Nanaimo residents drive to a 
designated road and drop off their carved jack-a-lanterns for display. The 
jack-a-lanterns remain there until they compost. The notion of the event is to 
have residents drive by to enjoy all the jack-o-lantems on display and make 
donations. 

As a result of the discussion. the fo llowing referral was introduced: 

It was moved and seconded 
That the City of Nanaimo's jack-o-Iantern event be referred to staff to 
determine whether there is a local organization that would be interested in 
developing such an event in Richmond and to examine possible locations 
for such an event. 

Councillor Au entered the meeting (4:04p.m.). 

3. GEOTOURISM 
(File Ref. No.) 

CARRIED 

Councillor Barnes made reference to a GeoTourism Program and circulated a 
page from a geotourism guide (attached to and forming part of these Minutes 
as Schedule 2). 

Discussion ensued and it was noted that geotourism is like a treasure hunt but 
with a twist. It combines outdoor adventure and exploration activities of 
geocaching and ietterboxing, with anecdotal and historical education. 
Participants use a global positioning system (GPS) or traditional treasure hunt 
clues to locate boxes hidden throughout the region and uncover riches along 
the way. 

Discussion further ensued regarding geotourism and it was noted that the Gulf 
of Georgia Cannery is already offering a geocaching program as are other 
organizations in Richmond. 

2. 
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Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
Wednesday, December 14, 2011 

It was noted that it may be of value to external organizations and societies to 
offer such a program in an effort to highlight some of Richmond's heritage 
assets. 

As a result of the discussion, the following referral was introduced: 

It was moved and seconded 
That the notion of ge%uTism be referred to stuff Jor communication to 
various heritage groups for their poten/ial use of Ihe concept ;n their 
programming. 

CARRIED 

ADJOURNMENT 

It was moved and seconded 
Tilat tile meeting adjourn (4:10 p.m.). 

CARRIED 

Certified a true and correct copy of the 
Minutes of the meeting of the Parks, 
Recreation & Cultural Services Committee 
of the Council of the City of Richmond held 
on ·Wednesday. December 14, 2011. 

Councillor Harold Steves 
Chair 

Hanieh Floujeh 
Committee Clerk 

3. 
34Jl1S0 
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Schedule 1 10 the Minutes of the 
Parks, Recreation and Cultural 
Services Committee meeting 
held on Wednesday, December 
14,2011. 

D 
Island City, by Nature 

BACKGROUND 
OPEN HOUSES RESUL TS 

Imperial Landing Waterfront 
November 17h and 2dh

, 2003 

Prepared by: 

Michael von Hausen, MLAUD, MCIP, CSLA 
President 

MVH Urban Planning & Design Inc. 
& 

Don Wuori, CSLA 
Principal 

Don Wuori Design Consultant 

In Association with 

The City of Richmond 

I)ecember 11,2003 

Imperi,,' Landing VISION STATEMENT 
1I1J1U 
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8 

3. Phoenix Net Loft Building Uses 
In general, there were 5 themes that summarized the potential reuse for the Phoenix 
Net Loft Building: 

1. Performing Arts Centre ICommunity Art Gallery for local artists 
2. Marine recreation 
3. Heritage preservation 
4. Special Events 
5. Research & Eco Education F~cility 

1. Performing Art Centre and Community Art Gallery 
a There appears to be an overwhell'tJing demand for this type of community cultural 

centre within Steveston that covers a range of events and activities related to the 
.... arious arts and cultures. 

o The Centre could include facilities that accommodate a variety of revenue 
generating community functions. 

o The facility CQuid include a restaurant or bistro to support functions. 
o The facility could also be combined with a larger site plan that include'S 

accommodation for artists in residence, local art programs, studios, outdoor 
performance, and theatre space. 

D Art exhibits could reflect works by local artisans or the general community. 

2. Marine Recreation 
o Wooden Boat Training Facility 
o Sail Training Base 
o Kayak/Canoe Club 
o Marina 
o Aquatic Centre 

3. Heritage. Preservation 
o Maritime Museum & restoration/boat building workshops 
o Fishing Gear Museum 
o BC Packers Legacy Centre 

4. SPE!cial EventsfCommercial 
o Tall Ship moorage 
o Convention Facilities 
o Pocket Cruise Ship Terminal 
o High End Seafood Restaurant 

5. Research & Eco Education Facility 
a Fraser River Estuarium Research & Interpretion. 

11052" 
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Feedback Opportunities 

The participants in the open houses were provided the opportunity to review and 
comment on the concept boards and background infannation . 

In particular attendees were asked for feedback on the following: 
1. Likes and Dislikes for 28 Elements of the three Visions; 
2. Each of the three Visions 
3. the future uses for the Phoenix Net Loft; 
4. Additional comments on the Visions; and 
5. Other comments about the City of Richmond. 

Participants were also given the opportunity to draw their own vision on a map. 

Feedback Commen~s 
The following is a summary of the most liked and disliked elements of the three visions: 

1. The Top Ten 

MOST LIKED 
Rank Element Percent liked 
1. Public Park Extension 85% 
2. Public Marina 71 % 
3. #1 Road Pier 70% 
4. Public Plaza and Pier 68% 
5. #1 Road Tram Stop 68% 
6. Specialty Grocery Store 67% 
7. SDecialtv Food Store (North of Bavview Street) 67% 
8. New Public Dock 67% 
9. Perfonninq Arts Centre 65% 
10. Waterfront Tram Sto ) (Easthope & Bayview 65% 

2. Th,~ Bottom Five 

MOST DISliKED -
Rank Elemerit Percent Disliked 
1. Floating Homes 75% 
2. Residential Uses OVer Water 73% 
3. Three Story Commercial Uses over land 67% 
4. Three Story Resid'ential Uses over land 57% 
5. Commercial & Residential Mixed Use Piers 54% 

IIOS2~4 
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5 

3. The 13 In-Between 

Rank Element Percent Liked 
1. New Pier with Special Events Moorage 62% 
2. Public Library 61% 
3. Public Marina (Vision 2) 61% 
4. Waterfront Restaurant 60% 
5. Retail & Office Mixed Use 59% 
6. Public Marina (Vision 3) 58% 
7. New Pier with Commercial Use 55% 
8. One & Two Storey Commercial over land 55% 
9. Retail & Residential Mixed Use 55% 
10. Reta il Fish Market 53% above 50% 

Rank Element Percent Liked 
1. New Commercial Pier with Public Dock 46% below 50% 
2. Residential Uses on Land 44% I 
3. Private Marina 39% ... 

Phoenix Net Loft Uses 
In general, five themes summarized the potential reuse for the Phoenix Net Loft 
Building , each emphasizing the public use preference: 

1. Performing Arts Centre and Community Art Gallery for local artists 
2. Marine recreation 
3. Heritage preservation 
4. Special .events 
5. Hesearch ·& Eco-Education Facility. 

Mapping 
The mapping exercise invited attendees to draw their vision of the Imperial Landing 
area. The 25 submissions of drawings and proposals ranged from a full park waterfront 
to a rich mix of residential, commercial, and public·related uses including the Granville 
Island type theme. 

A central theme was a public--oriented waterfront with wateHelated uses but generally 
no residential building over the water, re.inforcing the other results . 

Other suggested proposals included: 
a Pocket Cruise Ship terminal; 
a 1st Nations Cultural Centre and Hotel, 
three life sized bronze statues depicting three aspects of the fishing industry at No.1 
Road; and 
a TaU Ship training facility. 

uonu 



PRCS - 17

. • ,or" - The StevCSLVll 

Part 1 - Site Analysis and Development Plan 

BCPACKERS 
THE STEVESTON PROPERTfES PROJECT,TEAM 

Project Manager 
Public Consultation 
Architects 
Landscape An:hitects 
Environmental/Geotechnical 
Historjcal 
Marine Ecology 
Engineers 
Traffic 
Archeologicnl 
Heritage 

Moodie Consultants Ltd. 
Marzolf & Associates 
Perkins & Company 
R. Kim Perry & Associates lnc. 
Agra Earth & Enviroruncntal Ltd. 
Common Resources Consulting Ltd. 
O. L Williams & Associates Ltd. 
Westmar Consultants Inc. 
Bunt & Associates Engineering .Ltd. 
Areas Consulting Archaeologists Ltd. 
.be 
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-

5.5 Industrial Program 

lndu.strial areas are proposed to support the fishing fleer. The Phoenix Net Loft of approximately 
24,000 square feet could be maintained as a net repair and storage facility. This building is in fair 
condition and wiu require limited improvements to meet current industrial use standards. Directly 
associated with the Net Loft operation would be a surface parking area to the north and allowance 
for approximately 80 new commercial moorage slips fo r working vessels with net loading facilities. 

Parallel to the heritage boardwalk is an opportunity for a second commercial moorage facility that 
would be served from the Small Craft HarbotJr pier at tbe foot of No.1 Road. 

, 

--------------------------------------------
Be Packers - The Steves ton Properties 
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HISTORIC COMPONENTS OF SITE - Part 1 - Community Questumna;re Results - SepL 1997 

Based on past projects in the Steveston area, the cost to restore historic cannery buildings 
and/or wharves can be significant. The six historic buildings total approximately six times the 
size of the Gulf of Georgia Cannery building or five times the total building area of the 
Britannia Heritage Shipyard Park. 

It has been sLlggested that the Phoenix Net Loft be retained for continued industrial use. The 
plan also indiGates portions of the historic wharves be retained , with the ~ootprints" of the 
Imperial and Brunswick Cannery buildings framed by these wooden structures. Some 
historical building materials could be reused. Interpretive sign age, and some fishing industry 
artifacts from i:he cannery buildings could be exhibfted in and around the historic wharves. 
Retention of historic pilings could also add to the fishing character of the waterfront and 
provide protection for habitat. This approach provides for an ·open" waterfront 

Do you feel t!"itat the above noted proposals for the historical aspects of the site is 
appropriate? 

a. Agree 

b. Disagree 
c. Neutral 

b. Disagree (8'<"'",)-' 

. Agree (71 00%) 

Be Packers - The Steveston Properties 

J 

-' 

,-

, 
j 

'-' 

.J 

,/'" -
'J 
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29. Former Phoenix Site Office. late 1920$ and later 
This building has some significance for indicating its role in the business operations. It has 

little: architectural significance. The building is in poor condition, and' its interior was renovated in 
the 1970,. 

30, Phoenb;Ne< Loft, c.1943 
This building was e~ed on pilings over the river and its function is to store the nets of the 

cannery's fishing fleet. It is stiU in we today for net no rage and rep:lir. and has significance as a 
working industriol building which represents the herit>ge of the fi,hety. Irs vi.uol appeol is ol,o 
enhanced by its lOcation nat to a twin net loft th~ is preserved as pan of the Britann4 Heritage 
Shipyard. Still faintly visible on the roof shingles is the abbrevi4tion Canfisco. marking the site's 
industrial h~itory. 

This building has excellent potential to continue in io present use, and in doing so suppon the 
fishing indw;tty. Further. the large volumes of the ground and upper floors could be conducive to 
other adaptive reuse strategIes. 

While the two Storey timber struqufe and cedar plank cladding is in good condition, other 
elements nced prompt repair if the building is to be maintained. The roof is leaking and the water is 
causing rdan:d CWI12ge to the struaure. Foreshore Technologies has r_eponed that various sections of 
the .substructure are in poor condition due to heavy fungal damage, though the overall condition of 
the substruCture is &ir. Westmar Consultants estimates the cost of repairing the 14,000 square foot 

\...Jet Loft', rub,trucr= or $650,000 ($46I'quare foor) . 

Phoenix Pond, 1947 
This,p)nd, with an opening to the river. was dredged to provide sheltered wct stOragc spa.cc: 

for small fish.ing boats. before the' consauction of Shady Island. In addition. there may be pilings 
(noted on 1993 survey map) from the old Hume Cannery. or other building$, near the mouth of me 
pond that maty provide a visual cue for heritagc interpretacion. 

B.C::. Packers Heritage Inventory Donald Luxton & Associates 

,-
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EVALUATION MATRIX 

.. 
B.C. Packers Heritage Inventory Donald Luxton & Associates 
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, 

. Phoenix Net Loft 
Artists' Market 

During World War 2, Prime Minister Winston 
Churchill was told to cut the budget for the arts. To 

his credit, he refused saying " Then what are we 
fightingfor? " 

8 ,j 
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233:7P Waterlots Proposals - Expression of Interest 
. . 

.. 

Expression of interest to develop, manage and maintain the Phoenix 
Net Loft Portion of the B.C. Packer site as a Maritime Artist Center 

Proposed by: 

Mark Glavina & ASsociates 

Friday, August 17, 2001 

Mark Glavina 
Phoenix Coastal Art 
3891 Moncton Street, 
Richmond BC 
V7E3A7 
P • 604·448-1867 
F - 604448-J 861 
mark@Phocnixcoastalart.com 

73 
2 

• 
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• 

Introduction 

Accept this proposal as an expression of interest for the development. operation 
and management of the PhoeItix Net Loft. This is a brief outline of a strong 
concept ensuring the legacy of the only surviving histone Building on the BC 
Packers 47 acre site. This Concept has been planned in hannony with the 
recentUy adopted Offidal COinmunity Plan for the Steveston Area ensuring that 
"In the Year 2021, the Stevestan Waterfront Neighbourlwod will serve as a major Iwme 
port for the commercial fishing fleet around which will exist a unique community, rich in 
heritage, in which people will live, work and play, and many others will come to shop and 
enjDY the recreation, heritage and natural amenities of the are.a", ~_ 

The major benefits <;If this proposal are enhanced and unrestricted public a<xes< 
to the- waterfront; it will encourage the mixed use of an integrated waterfront and 
a vita~ link on the heritage trail between Britannia shipyards and the planned 
residential commwtity, ensuring compatibility between land uses. The PhoeniX 
Net Loft will become the historical framework for contemporary use, With a 
commercial vein,. to ensure economic viability for the Arts, Heritage and Culture; 
as well this will respond to the Oty of Richmond interests' of economic 
sustainability and quality of life. 

A very strong team has been put together to develop this project with a wide 
variel}' of backgrounds to ensure success and compatibility with the city's 
objectives. The development team varies in experience from architectural, 
business, marketing, arts, culture and financial. 

"ltVhy should you sup/ !urt tlte arts? It is all economically sound investment. For every 
d(l lfar that toe hIvest ill tlte nrts, we generate seven" 

Susan Stern - The Toronto Star 

.~ 
R ­• 1'.. 

• 
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Phoenix Net Loft 
Artists' Market 

• CONCEPT 

Think of Granville Island under one roof ..... . ... an arts umbrella 

The existing Net Loft with imaginative and strategic renovations would become 
a vital link on the Sieveston H(!ritage Trail, c~ebrating and en<ouraging 
Richmond's Arts and Culture. The proposed use of this facility would include a 
performance, entertainment and gallery space, a number of working art:i5tS' 
studios, (".<>-Operative Artists' Marl<e\ for participating artists, dr;una and dance 
studios, and a possible cultural interpretative center. 

Naturally, emphasis will be pla.ced on maritime themes, with a local fla~our for 
the particiipating artists sucA. as, print v;tl!kers, glass blowers, potters, f.bticattists, 
painters, sculptors,. je:welers, wood ' carY,ers, metalsmithing and even the 
performing arts participants. The opportwlity for working artisis to share their 
knowledge as mentors to young aspiring artists would be facilitated through the 
facility making worksbop and studio space accessible to the public. 

The facility will incorporate working artist studios retail gallery, entertainment 
and performance area, education and lecture. hall, supplies, frame shop. The 
application ·is based on subletting smaller units to professional artists and 
artisans, as working studios for individuals and groups, guilds or co-operatives. 
Emphasis will be placed pn maritime art with a local flavour encouraging 
multiple use, such as print 11}akers, g1ass blowers, potters, fabric artists, painters, 
sculptures~ jewelers, woodworkers and carvers, metalsmithing, dance studio and 
performing art studio. The facility would provide • .all under one roof, a much 
needed gr,ass root infrastructure to the Artist community,inc1usive of cultural 
and artistic endeavors. 

Finally our proposed use insures that this last remaining structure from the BC 
Packers 47 ,Acre site will continue to exist as a legacy for our children and grand 
children. It ensures and encourages public. access and participation and, 
combined with the activities at Britannia Heritage Shipyard, creates a critical 
mass on the waterfront that would benefit both endeavors 

This facility is planned as a for-profit, private endeavor, partnering with the city 
of Richmond as the property owner. An experienced development team has 
been put together to ellSure credibility, profitability and viability of the concept 
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• 

Background 

'Project lead 
Mark Glavina 

My experience as a leader in the art community dates back to 1993 when I 
completed a mural and a sold out Exhibition NRiver Harvest 1913" at Shady 
Island RestaUrant. I own and op .... ate Phoenix Coastal Art at 3891 Moncton 
Street in Historic Steveston Village. My business is art ! 

Our original location is dedicated to promoting and selling a variety of local Art 
from lhand made crafts, c~r;:amic sculpture~ woodwork and 'jewelry to paintings 
by renowned Richmond artist like 'Dan Varna1s, Adrienne Moore, Donna 
Baspaly. Excellent commercial success and the demand for art related services 
have 2illowed us -to expand"our current se.tvices to a second loca'tion The tfhoenix 
Art Workshop. Our new facility will permit us to finally offer all array of art 
classes and wpri<shops. A two-year waiting list for the &ndren'. claSses and 
extensive adult demand for programs demonstrates the need for this type of 
resow'ce .!n our community. Our new location will~be_ home to our very popular 
pichlll~ framing service, as 'Well as a neW lOOOsq foot gallery space. This new 
end~avor will allow our first location to expand its' art supply inventory to meet 
the growing needs of the community. The need for additional classroom space 
and workshop facilities is anticipated for theyear 2003. 

I have been always been involve<i with local heritage groups, believing that they 
are a key link to our cultural ties and identity as a community. My strong belief 
in the survival of our community's identity has been demonstrated through my 
cOllunitment to the, planning process over the past five years. My understanding 
of sustainable communities, balancing the commWiity's need and economic 
viability is the strongest ~t I bring to this process. 

In 1995 I was commissioned to paint a mural of Fin Slough at Broadmoor Mall 
and have 'recently completed a mural at Homma Elementary with the co-­
operation of the student body as an educational experience. FQr the Past five 
years I have co<urated the exhibitions at the Gull of Georgia Cannery, drawing 
artists to Steves.ton from all over the lower mainland. And in 1996 I opened 
Phoe~ Coastal Art as part of my commitment to the arts in this amazing 
commwtity. 

I am confident I have put together an excellent project development team with a 
strong iUld creative concept. 

7 
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Benefits 

Q Unrestricted Public Access to the Waterfront 

" Heritage legacy accessible to the public 

• " Creates a economically viable Cultural Legacy 

" Adheres to the a.c.p. 

Q "Lends itself to the village atmosphere with an integrated waterfront 

. 
Q lLong term retention of the unique character of a waterfront building 

" Co-existence with maritime activity along the water's edge 

Q Creates a critical mass of unique activity complementing Britannia 
Heritage Shipyards 

" Promotes local visual and performing arts in a variety of disciplines 

Q Meets and exceeds the city's objective of economic viability and re-use of 
our heritage resource 

, 
Q Permits educational opportunities for our community 

" Stimulates the local economy 

Q Enhances the Steveston's business center rather than competes 

" A vital link on the heritage trail between Britannia Shipyards and the 
planned residential community, ensuring compatibility between land uses 

Q It ensures and encourages public access and participation 

Q Is sensitive to the local environment and river habitat 

Q The Benefits of Granville Island Wlder one roof in our own community 

R 
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Development team 

Mark GJavina 
Phoenix Coastal Art 
3891 ~...{oncton Street 
V7E:!A7 

John IJreil 
11931 Fourth Ave 
Richmond BC 
V7E31H4 

Royal Bank of Canada 
6400 #3 Road 
RichmondBC 
V6Y2C2 

MaryGazetas 
6911 #3 Road 
RichmondBC 
V6Y2CI 

Hotson Baker Architects 
Bruce Haden 
604-255-1169 

Rob 5D1uth & Co 
Structure Consultants Ltd 
303-122.6 Homer 5t 
V6B2Y5 

Don Pepper &: Associated 
6-3555 Westminster Hwy 
Richmond BC 
V7C5P6 

Peter Findlay 
CPO Im{estments 
Venture Capital 
19 B Fourth Ave. 
Ottawa, K152KS 

q 

Local Business owner and operator 
Stevestoh resident. artist and educator. 

Marketing consultant, founder and 
president of Cannery Channel Tours and 
former Marketing consultant for the 
Stratford Festival and Expo 67 

AI Hailey 
Loans Officer, Business development 

Graduate ofMontreal's National Theater 
School and 16 years worKing for Ole 
City of Richmond in the Cultural and 
Heritage Field 

Project developer for Granville Island 
Lonsdale Ollay and Richmond City Hall 
and National Heritage Advisors with 
extensive experience in heritage 
development of this kind 

Structw"al Engineers with particular 
experience with Steveston's waterfront 
properties. 

Steveston Fisherman. Economist and 
retired educator and Author 

Venture Capital 

-
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Schedule 2 to the Minutes of the 
3?'iM"'"" Parks, Recreation and Cultural <.Hl"""'_ Services Committee meeting 

held on Wednesday, December 
14,2011 . 

Field Guide Volume 1 
PRE S ERV I NG OUR HISTORY & HERITAGE 

Gold 
_ @?-____ country 
~ 
--PROGRAM 

-=,.,...,.~ _ _ _ _ ' 
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To: 

From: 

Re: 

City of 
Richmond 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee 

Jane Femyhough 
Director, Arts, Culture & Heritage 

Richmond 2011 Arts Update 

Report to Committee 

Date: December 12, 2011 

File: 

Staff Rec()mmendation 

be received for information. 

Alt. J 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL Mi'NAGER 

ReVIEWED BY TAG NO 

D 
ReVIEWED BY CAO NO 

D 

3428841 
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December 12, 2011 - 2 -

Staff Report 

Origin 

The Richmo'nd Arts Strategy was developed to help guide the City's actions to make Richmond a 
city where the opportunities for participation in the arts at all levels are accessible, where artists 
feel they have a place and are seen as contributing to the community, where cultural industries 
are welcomed and where cultural activity is visible and supported. 

The following five strategic goals have helped to create a solid foundation for the Arts Strategy 
and ensure that the City is purposeful in the advancement of the arts in the community. 

1. Build capacity within and support for arts organizations; 

2. Strengthen. support and enhance the artistic community; 

3. Increase the variety and diversity of arts experiences and opportunities; 

4. Expand public awareness and understanding of the value of the arts; and 

5. Broaden the economic potential and contributions of the arts. 

These goals helped guide the arts in Richmond and consolidate and build upon the previous 
Olympic YI:::ar successes. This report presents the Richmond 2011 Arts Update (Attachment 1) to 
Council fo:r infonnation. 

Analysis 

The Richrrmnd 2011 Arts Update highlights the activities and achievements in the arts in our 
community during the past year and reflects the City's modest investment of $1.95 million to 
support and advance the arts. The report also showcases the essential role the arts play in 
building and sustaining a diverse community that is socially and economically healthy. 

The arts are an essential and integral part of our social fabric, enhancing people's health and 
wellbeing at both the individual and community level. The arts also benefit a city by bringing a 
sense of meaning and place to residents, providing visitors with lasting memories, and reflecting 
on its long.-term investment in the future. 

Financiallimpact 

There is no financial impact to this report. 
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December 12,2011 - 3 -

Conclusio'n 

The Richmond 2011 Arts Update highlights the activities and achievements in the arts in our 
community and exemplifies the important role the arts play in contributing to the livability of our 
city. 

Manager, Arts Services 
(604-247-4671) 

KS:ks 

An: 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

To: Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee Date: January 10, 2012 

From: Jane Fernyhough File: 
Director, Arts, Culture & Heritage 

Re: Richmond Potters Club's concerns at the Richmond Arts Centre 

Staff Recommendation 

That the report "Richmond Potters Club's concerns at the Richmond Arts Centre" dated January 
10,2012 from the Director, Arts, Culture and Heritage Services, be received for infonnation. 

~~ W/'VI/ 

Jane Femyhou 
Director, Arts, ultur 
(604-276-4288) 

All: 2 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

At the November 29, 2011 Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee meeting, staff 
were encow:aged to: 

Draft a report on the Richmond Potters Club's concerns as It would provide the Club an 
opportunity to meet with the Committee. 

This report responds to the request. 

Analysis 

The Richmond Arts Centre, opened in 1993 in the Richmond Library and Cultural Centre, 
consists of nine (9) studios: 

• dance sll1dio 
• painting studio 
• lapidary studio 
• pottery studio 
• fabric arts studio 
• multipurpose room 

• printmaking studio 
• recording studio (formerly a 

photography studio and dark room) 

• piano room 

The studios are booked for public programs, resident art groups and the occasional rental to other 
groups. Attachment 1 gives a breakdown of the resident art groups booking hours and the public 
program bookings. 

The Richmond Arts Centre strives to be a leader in community arts and arts education. 
Participation levels are increasing due to a growing population, and community interest in the 
arts is rising, placing greater demands on existing resources and limited arts spaces. Providing 
opportunities for the arts to grow whi le honouring the City'S past relationships and ensuring 
operations are well managed requires updating current systems and models to meet the needs and 
demands of today. 

In various communications including the newspapers and emai ls to Mayor and Council, the 
Richmond Potters Club has expressed concerns about their use of the pottery studio in the 
Richmond Arts Centre. Their concerns expressed are primarily centered around the hourly cost 
to book the studio for their club member's use. Since January 2011, staff have met with the 
Potters Club 9 times where studio rates, equipment, program fees, scheduling, glazing and kiln 
use, membership numbers, club promotion, and safety and storage were addressed. 

Resident Art Group Rates 
Resident Art Groups (fonnerly referred to by the generic term of User Groups) have been 
booking studio space at the Richmond Arts Centre since the Riclunond Cultural Centre opened in 
1993. According to Arts Centre records, in 1996 a studio rate of $0.84 per hour was charged to 
Resident Art Groups and in 2005 the studio rate was increased to $1.49 per hour. In 201 1, after 
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five years of no rate increases the Resident Art Groups studio rate was raised to $4.46 plus HST 
($5 per how) to bring rates mOre in line with other rates in the City. In the fall of2011, Resident 
Art Groups were infonned that as of January I, 2012 their club studio rate would be increased to 
$5.13 per hour plus HST ($5.75 per hour). Resident Art Groups pay a reduced rate compared to 
other non-profit groups who can rent studio space for $20 per hour plus HST. 

The increase in 2011, and more recently the increase for 2012, has sparked displeasure amongst 
some of the clubs, particularly the Potters Club which has a large number afbours booked for their 
exclusive use, and has been referenced on occasion as a 300% increase in studio rates. 

The new rates are not intended to remove Resident Art Groups from the Richmond Arts Centre 
or impede their arts practice. This is an hourly club rate and not the rate for an individual club 
member. Richmond's rates are the lowest in comparison to other similar facilities (pottery 
studios) in the Lower Mainland (Attachment 2). Studio rates help offset increasing operating 
costs such as cleaning of studios, general maintenance and repairs, utilities and administration. 
The Arts Centre also spends a minimum of$2000 per year cleaning the clay traps and 
maintaining the exhaust system in the pottery studio. 

In addition to using the pottery studio, the Potters Club also uses a storage room and closet, 
which are both free of charge. The estimated billing for the Club for 2011 was $4,080 plus HST 
($4,6\3.89). This included the following offsets given to the Club in 2011 to help with the 
increase in the hourly charge given the Club has a large number of hours booked for their use: 
$500 [or fall classes, $\300 for the Arts Centre's use of club equipment, and $2400 worth of 
studio time when the Club offers adult pottery classes. 

As of September 2011, the Club recorded 38 individuals on its 2011 membership list. An annual 
membership is currently $100. In discussions with members of the Club executive, an optimal 
number of members forthe Club is 65 and staff have offered to help review the Club's 
operations to build capacity as well as help promote the Club's benefits in an effort to increase 
the membership. 

Adult Pottery Classes 
Adult pottery classes are offered by the Potters Club. The City provides the studio free of charge 
for these classes (value $2,400), as well as promotes the Club' s classes in the Parks, Recreation 
and Culture Guide at no charge. The Potters Club hires their own instructors and is responsible 
for administering their classes. In 2011, the Potters Club received a subsidy for each pottery class 
to help offset the increases, however, staff communicated at the October meeting that this would 
not continue in 2012. The Arts Centre does not subsidize its children's art classes and according 
to the Potters Club 2010 budget, adult pottery classes made a profit. 

A review of adult pottery classes offered at comparable sites in the Lower Mainland was 
conducted and found the Ricrunond fees were the lowest. It was recommended that the Potters 
Club raise their class fees to align with other facilities in the area and staff offered to help the 
Club calculate its new fees and costs. Raising their class fees would also cover the subsidy the 
Club received in 2011. Adult class fees have been raised for Winter 2012 classes. Currently, two 
of the five classes are fuJI and the others have limited spaces available. 

3430731 
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Equipment IUse 
The Potters Club owns two of the five kilns at the Arts Cenne. The Club also owns ten pottery 
wheels of which three are in need of replacing. Staff proposed that the Arts Centre would 
purchase two new wheels in 2012 (total value approximately $3,000). which would be available 
for the Club to use. In 2011 the Club received a substantial credit from the Art Centre for the use 
of their equi.pment, however, after a recent review it was found that in 2011, the Arts Centre only 
used the Club's kilns 5-6 times and their wheels approximately 150 hours. In 2012, the Club will 
receive a $25 credit each time their kiln is used for Arts Centre programs. Staff have also 
suggested that the Arts Centre's use of club's wheels be free of charge in exchange for the Club 
receiving the studio at no cost when they offer adult classes. 

The Club is currently not charged for kiln firing at the Arts Centre. However, the Porters Club 
charges its members for this service. On average the Club fires 2-5 loads per week, resulting in 
increased hydro costs. Over the next several months staffwiU review the practices of other 
facilities in the Lower Mainland and will work with the Club to determine the optimum number 
of free firings and the cost for those over and above. Any costs will not be implemented until 
2013. 

Studio Tim'~ 
In 2011 , the Potters Club had approximately 45 hours of studio time per week for their member's 
use (many times there are only one to two members using the studio) and adult pottery classes 
(20 hours per week for three 9 week sessions per year), while the Arts Centre accessed the studio 
14 hours per week to offer children's pottery classes. The Arts Centre has notified the Club that 
as of January 2012 the studio is required on Fridays from 1 :45 p.m. to 7:45 p.m. to accommodate 
children's pottery classes, which were previously offered in the Printmaking room, as well as 
accommodate the preschool pottery waiting list. 

In order to advance the ceramic arts and build the number of the participants practicing the art 
(and thereby keep the pottery club viable into the future) it is important that the Arts Centre 
pottery classes be offered in the appropriate room, as it is a reflection of the quality of classes 
offered in an arts-specific facility. The kiln room (a separate room from the studios) is available 
to the Club at no charge during these class times to load/unload materials . The Club has also 
been assured that in the event they propose to organize a two day or even week long pottery 
workshop that staff will work with them to accommodate and help facilitate the success of these 
workshops. 

The Arts Centre, like other community faci lities, does not make a profit and instead is subsidized 
by the City in an effort to provide quality programs and services to the community at large. Staff 
respect the fact that the Potters Club offers adult pottery classes and will continue to provide 
ongoing support towards the operation of the Club by providing studio space at a very reasonable 
rate, maintaining the space and equipment associated with running the studio, crediting the 
Potters Club for the City'S use of their equipment, providing administrative support and 
promoting their classes and the Club, 

The Arts Centre provides children and adult classes in a variety of art forms to the conununity as 
well as supports arts groups and clubs to practice their art. As the only public programmable arts 
spaces in the city, maximizing the use of these important spaces ensures that an increasing 
number of residents derive benefit. Currently the spaces support 14 resident art groups with one 
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on a waiting list until space can become available. In addition, over 6,000 people took pan in 
registered programs in 2011 with a number on waiting lists. The Arts Centre also partners with 
others to pn:sent various arts events, including but not limited to the growing Children's Arts 
Festival and the Richmond International Film and Media Arts Festival. 

Financiallrnpact 

There is no financial impact to the recommendation. 

Conclusion 

The arts are a vital part of the community and contribute to the liveability of the City. In an effort 
to provide the community with a variety of arts experiences that are accessible to people of all 
ages, abilitil:!s and backgrounds, it is important for the City to honour past relationships, cultivate 
new ones and ensure operations continue to be well managed and responsive to the needs and 
demands of the growing population. By working together, we can ensure that the arts grow and 
flourish, now and into the future. 

~ 
Kim Somerville 
Manager, A.rts Services 
(604-247-4671) 

KS:ks 
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2011 Arts Centre Studio Use 
Resident Art Group 
Cathay Photographic Society 
Creative Jewellers Guild 
Richmond Artists Guild 
Riverside Arts Circle 
Richmond Gem & Mineral 
Richmond Chinese CaUiQraphy & PaintinQ Club 
Richmond Chinese Folk Dance 
Richmond Photo Club 
Richmond Potters Club 
Richmond Reelers & Scottish Dancers 
Richmond Weavers & Spinner 
TAGOR 

Youth Services 

Arts Centre Programs 

Studio 
Painting 
Lapidary_ 
Painting 
Paintina 
Lapidary 
Paintina 
Dance 
Painting 
Pottery 
Dance 
Fabric Arts 
Fabric Arts 

Sound Studio 

Dance 
Paintina 
Pottery 
Printmakina 
Lapidary 
PeriorminQ Arts Studio 
Piano Studio 
Sound Studio 
Fabric Arts . _- ---- - -

Averaae Weekly Use I SeDt-June 
2 hours 
3.5 hours 
3.25 hours 
2.5 hours 
20 hours 
1.5 hours 
5.75 hours 
2.75 hours (Si-weektv' 
45 hours 
2.5 hours 
5 hours 
20 hours 

5 hours 

45 hours 
26 hours 
14 hours 
22.5 hours 
6 hours 
23 hours 
37.5 hours 
21 hours 
12 hours 

~ 
~ 
-l 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

To: Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Date: January 9, 2012 
Committee 

From: Cathryn Volkering Carlile File: 
General Manager - Community Services 

Re: Current Issues That May Be Impacting Richmond Adolescents 

Staff Recommendation 

1. That the report dated January 9, 2012, Current Issues That May Be Impacting Richmond 
Ado(esc:ents, be received for infonnation. 

2. That a copy of the report be sent to the Council/School Board Liaison Committee for 
infonnation. 

~<. __ t __ e.-c~ ~ 
Cathryn Volkering Carlile -------­
General Manager - Community Services 
(604-276-4068) 

Alt. 3 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

ROUTED TO: CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

Recreation Y ~ D Ifl.lc -" " ~::<--:" 
------ . 

REVIEWED BY TAG 

~ 
NO REVIEWED BY CAO ~ 0 

c5l 0 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

At the May 19, 2010 Council/School Board Liaison Committee meeting, in discussions 
concerning funding shonfalls facing the Richmond School District (SD#38), the following 
motion was referred to the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee: 

That staff, through the Wellness Strategy, in conjunction with the Richmond School 
Board and Vancouver Coastal Health, prepare an interim report on current issues thaI 
may be impacting Richmond adolescents, and report back in six months. 

The motion. was prompted by news that the District was discontinuing the Youth Support Worker 
(YSW) positions based out of each Richmond secondary school, effective the end of the 
2009/2010 school year. 

The purpose of the report is to respond to the previously mentioned referral. The report contains 
the following components: 

1) Background on YSW positions; 
2) School District#38 Spring 2011 interim review of the impact of losing the YSW position 
3) School District#38 Adolescent Support Team and new District service model 
4) An assessment of the impact of the loss of the YSW positions through the lens of the 

Community Wellness Strategy. 

The report responds to the following Council term goal: 

Improve the effectiveness of the delivery of Social Services through the development and 
implementation of a Social and Community Services Strategy that includes facilitation! 
development of an effective cross·service network that includes both intergovernmental 
and community agencies (RCSAC) supporting/working together cooperatively. 

Findings olf Fact 

Youth Support Worker Position Role 
Prior to the 2010/2011 school tenn, School District#38 (SD) employed ten YSWs, based oUI of 
each secondary school in the. city. The YSWs provided support to their school-based colleagues 
in working with students to promote the development of their social, behavioural, and academic 
skills. They referred and ep.couraged students to seek support from counsellors, teachers, 
administrators, and outside agencies, and provided information and assistance in accessing this 
support. 

The YSWs were an active, visible, and positive presence in schools. They worked to maintain 
effective communication and rapport with at-risk and behaviourally challenged students by 
supporting their emotional needs and developing trusting relationships. 

'"'''' 
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School District Review 
In May 2011, the Director of Instruction, Learning Services (SD#38) prepared an internal interim 
report (Attn~hmeDt 1) for the Board of Education regarding the impact oflosing the YSW 
positions in the schools. 

The SD#38 report noted that in September 2010, following the District budget cuts, a new 
service model had been created, whereby two District Adolescent Mental Health Outreach 
Worker positions were established (0 address mental health needs of secondary students, and 
connect with community services on the students' behalf. The report indicated that the eLUTen! 
Adolescent Mental Health Outreach Worker positions would be continued. Further, the 
District's Mental Health Consultant, the two Community Outreach Teachers and the two 
Adolescent Mental Health Outreach Workers would work together to develop and implement a 
comprehensive approach to supporting vulnerable youth. 

To gather information for the report, Secondary principals, vice principals, counsellors, and 
learning resource teachers were asked to provide feedback about the impact of the loss of the 
YSW positions. In addition, a survey was administered to these same groups to obtain feedback 
regarding the service provided by the new Adolescent Mental Health Outreach Worker positions. 

The key conclusions from the report were: 

1) The data on the impact of the loss of the YSWs was inconclusive, with half the schools 
noting a significant impact and half noticing little or no change; and, 

2) Insufficient time had elapsed to properly evaluate the impacts of the changes. 

Adolescent Support Team and Continuum 0/ Learning 
For the 201112012 school year, one full-time and one part-time Youth Connection Worker 
position (1.5 FTEs) were approved, and have now joined the new Adolescent Youth Support 
Team. The Youth Connection Worker(s) are part ofSD#38's Adolescent Support Team, and 
will work with youth who are considered "at-risk" and/or "Iow-asset". 

SD#38 has developed a "Continuum of Leaming Services" approach to working with youth 
(Attachme:ot 2), which incorporates long-tenn specialized support, short-tenn targeted support 
and a wUversal design for learning. The continuum of learning services is based on a school­
wide systemic approach, and identifies which areas on the continuum would provide the most 
effective support for each individual student. 

Wellness Strategy 
The Richmond Community Wellness Strategy (CWS), endorsed by Council in February 2010, is 
one of four inter-related strategies intended to address a Council-endorsed initiative: the 
Richmond Community of Excellence for Sport and Wellness. 1 

I The orner components are the Richmond Spon for Life Strategy (2010-2015), the Olympic and Paralympic 
Involvement :md Legacy, and the Richmond Sport Hosting SrJ1uegy. 
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The CWS is an integrated holistic, collaborative weUness strategy for Richmond; one which 
builds on the City's strengths, and identifies and addresses the gaps. The Strategy was a 
collaborative effort,jointly created by the City, Vancouver Coastal Health (VCH), and SD#38. 
It falls under the jurisdiction of all agencies and groups; all have endorsed the strategy and no 
one agency is solely responsible for its success. 

The desired outcomes of the CWS are for residents of Richmond to have: 
• An increased pennanenr commitment to wellness and well-being; 
• Increased physical activity and physical fitness; and 
• An increased sense of connectedness to the community. 

Analysis 

In August and September 2011, staff conducted key infonnant interviews with a number of 
individuals, representing a diverse range of organizations (e.g., VCH, RCtv1P, SO#38, 
City/Community Association Recreation Services). Characteristics shared by the interviewees 
were that they aU: 

• worked closely with secondary schools in the District; and 
• were involved in delivery of community based programs and services for youth in 

Richmond. 
• were committed to working towards the desired outcomes of the CWS and promoting 

population wellness within Richmond. 

In order to respond to the intent of the Council/School Board Liaison Committee referral, staff 
used a Community Wellness lens to create the interview questions and frame the analysis. 

Before proceeding with the interviews, staff provided an overview of the CWS. StafIalso 
stressed that the intent was not to question the appropriateness of the School District's decisions 
(i.e. in order to balance the budgets, difficult choices often have to be made). Rather, the intent 
was to gain a better understanding of the impact of the resulting changes, from the perspective of 
the CWS, from key people in the field. Comments gathered from the interviews are presented in 
AttachmeQ,t 3. As with the SD#38 review, it is difficult to draw firm conclusions from the 
analysis~ but themes that emerged through the interviews encompass the following: 

• it is clear that when the YSWs were working within each school, the youth reaped the 
benefits of having additional support in place to address issues promptly. 

• for some Richmond adolescents, wellness and well-being, physical activity and physical 
fitne:ss, and sense of connectedness to the community were impacted by the cuts; 
particularly for those youth with a significant connection to the YSW in their school. 

• students working with the YSW had to come to terms with that relationship ending, 
perhaps before they were able to access the support they were looking for. 

• youths who did not have a connection to the YSW were not directly impacted by the 
budget cuts. 

'"'0''' 
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Next Steps: 

• City of Richmond Youth Services will meet with the Adolescent Youth Support team 
• Youth Services and District Administration will meet throughout the year for updates on 

trends and issues impacting Riclunond adolescents 
• The City will continue to promote the Roving Leader and 40 Developmental Assets model 

to the District 
• The Youth Services Team will continue to foster relationship building with their local 

school(s), (e.g. advertising Community Centre ans and recreation program opportunities, 
interacting with the students during lunch time, connecting with 8D#38 staff and 
administrators). 

Financial Impact 

There is no financial impact. 

Conclusion 

It is generalJy understood that youth may experience impacts when a service reduction results in 
their immediate needs going unmet. That said, the conclusions from this report are mixed. 
People who were interviewed stated that youth who had a positive connection with the YSW in 
their particular school were impacted by the loss of the YSW position. For youth who did not 
work with the YSW, there was no measurable impact. For youth requiring support previously 
received from the YSW. the counsellors and other staff have stepped up to try to fill that gap in 
servIce. 

After implementing the YSW cuts. the School District established two Adolescent Mental Heath 
Worker positions to work with youth with identified mental healtb needs. Since the loss of the 
YSW in the: schools, SD#38 has created an Adolescent Support Team to serve vulnerable youth 
and youth with mental health issues, which is made up of a Mental Health Consultant, two 
Mental Health Outreach Workers, two Community Outreach Teachers and two Youth 
Connection Workers. It is too early to tell the ultimate effectiveness of the new service delivery 
model; however, City staff are committed to work collaboratively with our 80#38 counterparts 
to provide positive programs, services and suppon for youth in Richmond. 

It is recommended that a copy of this report be sent to the Council/School Board Liaison Committee 
for information. 

Kate Rudelier 
Youth Services Coordinator 
(604-276-4110) 
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ATTACHMENT I 

Report to the Board of Education (Richmond) 
Public 

Soard ofl:duutioJl 
Sd,ool Diurict us (Richmolld) 

DATE: May 2, 2011 

FROM: Kathleen Champion, Director of Instruction, Learning Services 

SUSlE:CT: Youth Support Workers/Adolescent Mental Health Outreach 
Workt~rs 

Th is report is presented to the Board of Education (Richmond) for information. 

BACKGROUND 
In the budget development process In the spring of 2010, the 10 Youth Support 
Workers positions, one in each of the secondary schools , were eliminated as one of 
the measures to achieve a balanced budget. A new service model using two newly 
created District Adolescent Mental Health Outreach Workers was established to 
address the mental health needs of secondary students and make better connection 
with community services on behalf of these students. 

Secondary principals, vice principals, counselor and learning resource teachers were 
asked to provide feedback about the impact of the loss of the Youth Support Worker 
positions. In addition, a survey was administered to these same groups to obtain 
feedback regarding the service provided by the new Adolescent Mental Health 
Outreach Workers 

The data on the impact of losing the Youth Support Worker positions has been 
inconclusive with half the schools noting a significant impact and half not noticing 
any change. The information gained from the survey was also inconclusive and 
Indicated that there has been Insufficient time to properly evaluate the new roles. 

ACTION PLAN 
Because the data on the impact on the loss of the Youth Support Workers is 
lncondusive, and also because there has been insufficient time to properly evaluate 
the effectiveness of the new role, the current Adolescent Mental Health Outreach 
Worker positions will be continued and the current District services for secondary 
studen.ts at risk will be integrated. Specifically, the District's Mental Health 
Consultant, the two CommunIty Outreach Teachers and the two Adolescent Mental 
Health Outreach Workers wJll work together to develop and implement a 
comprehensive approach to supporting vulnerable students that would address all 
three tiers of intervention as identified on the Continuum of Learning Services (see 
attached). It should be noted that in educational research , validated practice fully 
supports the notion of a tiered approach to support/intervention. further, it is hoped 

I 
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that Youth Connections Workers (1.5) will be approved in the budget process. These 
Individ uals would then be a part of the new integrated team. 

While !the support of all of the service roles above are highly effective, they can be 
significantly strengthened and enhanced by working together in more intentional 
ways to support secondary school students and the staff/teams that support them. 
The integration of services will also provide opportunities to reframe and expand the 
service over t ime and monitor resu lts and effectiveness as we do so. 

Respectfully submitted, 

'XarJi(ee:n Cham}"'n 

Kathlel;n Champion 
Director of Instruction, Learning Services 

2 
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A Continuum of 
Learning Services 
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AHACHMENT3 

Summary of Key Informant Interview Comments 

Increased permanent commitment to wellness and well-being 
• Teachers. administrators, and other staff in the schools still have a strong 

commitment to the wellness and well being of youth, but have had to fe-adapt 
their roles given the absence of the YSW. 

• Professionals within the School District have had to restructure their time and 
evaluate their roles within their school, particularly in terms of extra-curricular 
activities and being readily available to assist and support youth. 

• Several key informants identified the " low-asset youth" as a group who generally 
require extra support in their school lives. These youth don't fall under the 
jurisdiction of the Adolescent Mental Health Workers, and they aren't necessarily 
connecting to their peers or their school. 

• Once youth have got to a certain place (behaviourally, criminal activity, etc), 
recreation programs may not be appropriate for them~ and they may not 
necessarily have mental health issues - the YSW was potentially who they wou1d 
go to for suppon. 

• Without the YSWs in the schools, counsellors have stepped in to support and refer 
youth to appropriate services. 

• There has been a decrease in the amount of "girls" and "boys" groups meeting 
during lunch hours, which were primarily facilitated by the YSW. These groups 
were created to provide an open~ supportive, non-judgmental environment for 
youth to connect with peers and discuss issues, trends, and difficulties in their 
lives. 

Increased physical activity and physicalfilness 
• Some key infonnants noticed an impact in this area, with others noticing no 

change. Some Drop-in sports that the YSWs supervised during lunch hour have 
been affected. 

• For some youth, a typical physical education class is an uncomfortable, difficult 
e:nvironment. With the option to obtain sports credit in a less traditional way, by 
doing physical activity with the YSW, youth remain physically active while still 
having their individual needs addressed; has anyone taken on the role of 
supervising these students? Is this still an option? 

• The connection between the schools and the community centre in their area 
continues to be an excellent resource for youth physical activity and physical 
.fitness, particularly for schools that do not have their own fitness facility. 

• Currently, some of the (community centre-based) Youth Development 
Coordinators (YDes) are coordinating and supervising physical activities for 
youth during school hours. 

Increased sense of connectedness to the community 
• For many community organizations, the YSW was the main contact at the 

schools. 

3414107 
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• Some YSWs helped facilitate programs with community organizations outside of 
regular school hours. 

• YDCs had more access to students with the YSW. YDC connection. They were 
invited into Grade 8 P.E. classes and were occasionally a guest at school staff 
meetings. The students would get to know the YDCs, and about the community 
centres connected to (or nearby) their schools. 

• YDCs and community centres should be utilized and work together with the 
schools to put programs and services together, and try to fill any identified gaps. 

3414107 
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To: 

From: 

Re: 

City of Richmond 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services 
Committee 

Mike Redpath 
Senior Manager, Parks 

Richmond Athletic Commission Update 

Staff Recommendation 

Report to Committee 

Date: Janaury 12, 2012 

File: 01-0100-20-RATH1-
0112009-Vo101 

That the n:port "Richmond Athletic Commission Update" from the Senior Manager, Parks be 
received for infonnation. 

~w~ 
Mike. Redpath 
Senior Manager, Parks 
(604-247-4942) 

At!. I 

ROUTED To: 

Finance 

REVIEWED 13V TAG 

2724801 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

CONCURRENCE C.q!ls;lJll!,I 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

In September 2009, Counci l approved an amendment to the Richmond Athletic Commission 
(RAe) Bylaw, enabling a fmancial engagement review to be prepared. The purpose of this report 
is to present Council with the completed 2008, 2009 and 2010 RAe Financial Engagement 
Review. 

Analysis 

2010 Finalllcial Engagement Review 

The RAe Bylaw section 1.6.2.1 below details the following: 

"1 .6.2 .Record Keeping 

1.6. 2. 1 

1.6.2.2 

The Commission must keep accurate records of all monies received and 
expended by ii, which QCCOunfS and records shall be open for the 
inspection by the City. 

The Commission shall submit to Council the following documents on or 
be/ore August 131 of each year when (mnual Commission financial 
transactions are less than 5250.000: 

(a) a copy of the annual financial statement for the p receding year 
accompanied by the accountant 's review engagement financial 
report: and 

(b) a report o/the preceding year's activities. ,. 

Attachment 1 includes the Financial Statements of thc Richmond Athletic Commission and the 
Review Engagement Report issued by Blue Fish Chartered Accountants for years 2008 to 20 I O. 
After revie=wing the financial statements, the accountants are satisfied that the financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The 
RAC currently holds it 's funds in accounts at Coast Capital Savings in Richmond. As the 
majority of the funds are simply held in trust on a per event basis, monies collected are disbursed 
requiring the signatures of two RAC Directors shortly after collection from event promoters. 
Revenues after disbursements are held in tbe same account. All other expenses require 
Commission resolutions and approval. 

In October 2006, Richmond Bylaw 8035 establishing an Athletic Commission to regulate 
professional boxing activities was adopted. Since that time, eight events have been regulated by 
the Commission. RAC since 2007, has regulated eight professional boxing events: three in 2007, 
one in 2008, two in 2009, one in 2010, and one in 2011. All events have been held at the River 
Rock Casin.o to a nearly sold out crowd. Two of the events were televised on ESPN to millions 
of viewers c!ach time. Several well-known professional celebrity boxers have attended each event 
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for speaking engagements including: the late "Smokin" Joe Frazier, "Sugar" Ray Leonard, 
Thomas "The Hitman" Hearns, "Irish" Mickey Ward (The Fighter), George Chuvalo and others. 
After regulating eight events, RAe has gained valuable experience and best practise advice from 
counterparts in Canada and the USA with respect to the effectiveness of Commissions. 

At the completion of each event, and after expenses, the Commission generates a small surplus 
from licensing and event fees. This surplus has been previously approved by Council as the 
funding source for disbursement as the Richmond Athletic Commission scholarship fund for 
Richmond youth. The Commission is in the process of establishing an endowment fund for the 
annual scholarship with the Richmond Community Foundation. 

Financial Impact 

There are no financial implications associated with this infonnation repon. 

Conclusion 

This report satisfies the Richmond Athletic Commission 's requirement for providing an annual 
financial update on it' s 2010 activities. The Commission would like to thank Council for it's 
continued support. 

Mike Redpath 
Senior Manager, Parks 
(604-247-4942) 

MER:mer 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Financial Statements 

De~ember 31,2010 

(Unaudited) 

BLUE FISH GROUP 

Attachment I 
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BLUE FISH GROUP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT S 

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

To the Directors of Richmond Athletic Commission 

We have reviewed the statement of financial position of Richmond Athletic Commission as at 
December 31, 2010 and the statements of revenue and expenditures and net assets and the statement of 
cash flows for the period then ended. Our review was made in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted standards for review engagements and accordingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical 
procedures anci discussion related to information supplied to us by the Commission. 

A review does not consUtute an audit and consequently we do not express an audit opinion on these 
financial statements. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial 
statements are not. in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Chartered Accountants 

Burnaby, B.C. 
October 18,20·11 

tel 60429 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

ASSETS 

CURRENT 
Cash 

LIABILITIES ~,ND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT 

Statement of Financial Position 

December 31, 2010 

(Unaudited) 

$ 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters (Note 2) $ 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 

ON BEHALF OF THE COMMISSION 

_____ . _____ ___ Chair 

_ _ _ _ ____ ____ _ Treasurel 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

SLUE FISH GROUP 
c .. ~ "f' .I" . ccOuN T." .. 

$ 

2010 2009 

14,482 $ 13,683 

$ 1.500 

14,482 12.183 

14,482 $ 13.683 

3 
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RICH MOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and Net Assets 

Period Ended December 31, 2010 

(Unaudited) 

2010 2009 

REVENUE 
Event fees $ 1,500 $ 3,000 
License fees 1,080 1,135 
Promoter's event charge 150 300 

2,730 4,435 

EXPENDITURES 
Bank charg:es 41 46 
Memberships 350 350 

391 396 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 2,339 4,039 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) 
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (41) (232) 
Interest income 1 1 

(40) (231) 

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 2,299 3,808 

NET ASSETS· Beginning of period 12,183 8,375 

NET ASSETS ,. End of period $ 14,482 $ 12,183 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
" .. ~ ........ ACCO ...... ~ •• 

4 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Period Ended December 31,2010 

(Unaudited) 

OPERATING JICTIVITIES 
Excess of revenue over expenditures 
Changes in non-cash working capital: 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters 

Cash flow from operating activities 

INCREASE IN CASH FLOW 

CASH - Beginliling of period 

CASH - End olf period 

CASH CONSISTS OF: 
Cash 

See accompanying noles to financial statements 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
"r< • • " •• ~ ."co ... .. , . .. , . 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2010 

2,299 $ 

(1,500) 

799 

799 

13,683 

14,482 $ 

14,482 $ 

2009 

3,808 

1,500 

5,308 

5,308 

B,375 

13,6B3 

13,6B3 

5 
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RICHMO ND ATHLETIC COM MISSION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Period Ended December 31,2010 

(Unaudited) 

1. PURPOSE AND STATUS OF THE COMMISSION 

On July 11 , 2007, the City of Richmond established the Richmond Athletic Commission by way of the 
Athletic Commission Bylaw 8035. The Commission's purpose is to regulate, control, supervise or 
prohibit rt."gulated sporting events such as professional boxing contests within the City of Richmond. 
The Commission is a not·for·profit organization, and is a tax-exempt entity, under Section 149 of the 
Income Tax Act 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Revenue recognition 

license fl~es, event fees and broadcast fees are recognized as revenue upon the completion of the 
related event 

Financial instruments 

The Commission has adopted CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments. This standard 
requires all financial instruments within its scope to be included on the organization's statement of 
financial position and measured either at fair value or, in certain circumstances when fair value may 
not be considered most relevant, at cost or amortized cost Changes in fair value, jf any, are to be 
recognized in the statements of revenue and expenditures and net assets. 

All financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading , held 
to maturity, loans and receivables, available-far-sale financial assets, or other financial liabilities. 
Initial and subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in the value of financial instruments 
depends on their initial classification . 

The Commission's financial instruments consist of cash and net refundable security deposits 
received from Promoters. It is managemenfs opinion that the Commission is not exposed to 
significant: interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. 

In accordance with this new standard, the Commission has classified its financial instruments as 
follows: 

- Cash and cash equivalents are classified as held for trading. 

- Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters are classified as other financial 
liabilities. 

Measurement uncertainty 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accountin9 principles. The precise value of many assets and liabilities is dependent on future events. 
As a result, the preparation of financial statements for a period involves the use of approximations 
which have been made using careful judgement. Actual results could differ from those 
approximcltions. 

(continues) 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
c~ .. . , ••• " .. c .... " .. ,. " •• 

6 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Period Ended December 31,2010 

(Unaudited) 

2. SUMMAHY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters 

The Cornmission receives, in trust, refundable security deposits from Promoters of boxing events. 
These dE~posits serve to secure the Promotars' obligations in relation to the respective event. These 
deposits ,are disbursed by the Commission, on behalf of the Promoters, to various parties such as the 
athletes, referees, judges, timekeepers, medical personnel, ambulances and other event 
expenditures. The refundable security deposits received by the Commission are not considered 
revenue to the Commission. Similarly, the disbursements of funds on behalf of the Promoters are 
not considered expenditures of the Commission. The net refundable security deposits received from 
Promoters represents the net excess of funds received over disbursements as at the year-end. 

3. DONATED SERVICES 

The Commission receives voluntary services in conducting some of its activities. Donated services 
of a non-remunerative nature are not recognized in these financial statements. 

4. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

The Commission is economically dependent on license fee income and event fee income from 
regulated sporting events. These events mayor may not take place in the City of Richmond in a 
given fiscal year. 

B LUE FISH GROUP 

7 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Financial Statements 

December 31, 2009 

(Unaudited) 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
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BLUE FISH GROUP 
CHAR T ERED ACCOUNTA NTS 

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

To the Oirectors of Richmond Athletic Commission 

We have reviewed the statement of financial position of Richmond Athletic Commission as at 
December 31, 2009 and the statements of revenue and expenditures and net assets and the statement of 
cash flows for the period then ended. Our review was made in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted starldards for review engagements and accordingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical 
procedures and discussion related to information supplied to us by the Commission. 

A review does not constitute an audit and consequently we do not express an audit opinion on these 
financial statements. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial 
statements are not, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Chartered Acc:ountants 

Burnaby, B.C. 
July 22, 2010 

tel 60429 

222 - 8678 Greenall Avenue. Burnaby Be V5.J 3M6 
.5050 fax 604 298 571 3 email Info(a'blueflsh be ea www bluefish be ea 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

ASSETS 

CURRENT 
Cash 

LIABILITIES ~'ND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT 

Statement of Financial Position 

December 31, 2009 

(Unaudited) 

$ 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters (Note 2) $ 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 

ON BEHALF OF THE COMMISSION 

_ _ _______ _____ Chair 

_____ ______ __ Tre8surer 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

BLUE FISH GROUP 

$ 

2009 2008 

13,683 $ 8,375 

1,500 $ 

12,183 8,375 

13,683 S 8,375 

3 
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RICHMO ND ATHLETIC COMMISSIO N 

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and Net Assets 

Period Ended December 31,2009 

(Unaudited) 

2009 2008 

REVENUE 
Event fees $ 3,000 $ 1.800 
License fees 1,135 610 
Broadcast fees 900 
Promoter's event charge 300 

4,435 3,310 

EXPENDITURES 
Advertising and promotion 247 
Bank chargles 46 48 
ConferenCE! 1.500 
Memberships 350 
Office and miscellaneous 20 

396 1.815 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 4,039 1.495 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) 
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (232) 295 
Interest income 1 5 

(231) 300 

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 3.808 1.795 

NET ASSETS M Beginning of period 8,375 6 .580 

NET ASSETS M End of period $ 12.183 $ 8.375 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
C~ ~"""'D ~ "C"U " U ''' ' 

4 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Pe riod Ended December 31, 2009 

(Unaudited) 

OPERATING ,~CTIVITIES 
Excess of revenue over expenditures 
Changes in non-cash working capital: 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters 

Cash flow from (used by) operating activities 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH FLOW 

CASH - Beginning of period 

CASH - End of period 

CASH CONSISTS OF: 
Cash 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
"~A.'.".O AC"OU N,A''''. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2009 

3,808 $ 

1,500 

5,308 

5,308 

8,375 

13,683 $ 

13,683 $ 

2008 

1,795 

(27,789) 

(25,994) 

(25,994) 

34,369 

8,375 

8,375 

5 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Period Ended December 31 , 2009 

(Unaudited) 

1. PURPOSE AND STATUS OF THE COMMISSION 

On July 11, 2007, the City of Richmond established the Richmond Athletic Commission by way of the 
Athletic Commission Bylaw 8035. The Commission's purpose is to regulate, control, supervise or 
prohibit n=gulaled sporting events such as professional boxing contests within the City of Richmond. 
The Commission is a not-for-profit organization, and is a tax-exempt entity, under Section 149 of the 
Income Tax Act. 

2. SUMMAF1Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Revenue recognition 

License f,ees, event fees and broadcast fees are recognized as revenue upon the completion of the 
related e\lent. 

Financial instruments 

The Commission has adopted CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments. This standard 
requires all financial instruments within its scope to be included on the organization's statement of 
financial position and measured either at fair value or, in certain circumstances when fair value may 
not be cOlnsidered most relevant, at cost or amortized cost. Changes in fair value, if any, are to be 
recognize:d in the statements of revenue and expenditures and net assets. 

All financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading, held 
to maturity, loans and receivables, available-far-sale financial assets, or other financial liabilities. 
Initial and! subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in the value of financial instruments 
depends Ion their initial classification. 

The Commission's financial instruments consist of cash and net refundable security deposits 
received from Promoters. It is management's opinion that the Commission is not exposed to 
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. 

In accordance with this new standard, the Commission has classified its financial instruments as 
follows: 

- Casl~ and cash equivalents are classified as held for trading. 

- Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters are classified as other financial 
liabilities. 

Measurernent uncertainty 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles. The precise value of many assets and liabilities is dependent on future events. 
As a result, the preparation of financial statements for a period involves the use of approximations 
which helve been made using careful judgement. Actual results could differ from those 
approximi3tions. 

(continues) 

BLUE FISH GROUP 

6 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Period Ended December 31. 2009 

(Unaudited) 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters 

The Commission receives, in trust. refundable security deposits from Promoters of boxing events. 
These deposits serve to secure the Promotars' obligations in relation to the respective event. These 
deposits ,3re disbursed by the Commission, on behalf of the Promoters, to various parties such as the 
athletes, referees, judges, timekeepers, medical personnel, ambulances and other event 
expenditures. The refundable security deposits received by the Commission are not considered 
revenue to the Commission. Similarly, the disbursements of funds on behalf of the Promoters are 
not conSilderecl expenditures of the Commission. The net refundable security deposits received from 
Promoters represents the net excess of funds received over disbursements as at the year-end. 

3. DONATED SERVICES 

The Com mission receives voluntary services in conducting some of its activities. Donated services 
of a non-remunerative nature are not recognized in these financial statements. 

4. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

The Commission is economically dependent on license fee income and event fee income from 
regulated sporting events. These events mayor may not take place in the City of Richmond in a 
given fiscal year. 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
c ~ .. ~ • • ~~~ .co" .. " .. . .... . 

7 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Financial Statements 

December 31, 2008 

(Unaudited) 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
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BLUE F ISH GROUP 
CHA R TEREO ACCOUNTANTS 

REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

To the Directors of Richmond Athletic Commission 

We have reviewed the statement of financial position of Richmond Athletic Commission as at 
December 31,2008 and the statements of revenue and expenditures and net assets and the statement of 
cash flows for the period then ended. Our review was made in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted standards for review engagements and accordingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical 
procedures and discussion related to information supplied to us by the Commission. 

A review doe!:; not constitute an audit and consequently we do not express an audit opinion on these 
financial staternents. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial 
statements am not, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Chartered Accountants 

Burnaby, B.C. 
October 22, 2009 

tel 6042 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

ASSETS 

CURRENT 
Cash 

LIABILITIES ,AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT 

Statement of Financial Position 

December 31, 2008 

(Unaudited) 

$ 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters (Note 2) $ 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricte!d net assets 

BLUE FISH GROUP 

$ 

2008 2007 

8,375 $ 34,369 

$ 27,789 

8,375 6,580 

8,375 $ 34,369 

3 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSIO N 

Statement of Revenue and Expend itures and Net Assets 

Period Ended December 31 ,2008 

REVENUE 
Event fees 
License feles 
Broadcast fees 
Other income 
Interest income 
Foreign exchange gain 

EXPENDITUHES 
Advertisin~1 and promotion 
Bank chaq~es 
Conferenoe 
Office and miscellaneous 

(Unaudited) 

EXCESS OF IREVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 

NET ASSETS - Beginning of period 

NET ASSETS - End of period 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
e ~A ~T.~~C .ecOV N "~ T ~ 

2008 

$ 1,800 
610 
900 

5 
295 

3,610 

247 
48 

1,500 
20 

1,815 

1,795 

6,580 

$ 8,375 

$ 

$ 

2007 

4,650 
1,170 

900 
52 

6,772 

24 

168 

192 

6,580 

6,580 

4 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSIO N 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Period Ended December 31,2008 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Excess of revenue over expenditures 
Changes in non--cash working capital: 

(Unaudited) 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters 

Cash flow 'from (used by) operating activities 

INCREASE ([)ECREASE) IN CASH FLOW 

CASH· Beginning of period 

CASH· End of period 

CASH CONSISTS OF: 
Cash 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

BLU E FISH GROUP 
~~. ~H'''C Ac ca U NhN 'S 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2008 

1,795 $ 

(27,789) 

(25,994) 

(25,994) 

34,369 

8,375 $ 

8,375 $ 

2007 

6,580 

27,789 

34,369 

34,369 

34,369 

34,369 

5 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COM MISSIO N 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Period Ended December 31,2008 

(Unaudited) 

1. PURPOSE AND STATUS OF THE COMMISSION 

On July 11, 2007, the City of Richmond established the Richmond Athletic Commission by way of the 
Athletic Commission Bylaw 8035. The Commission's purpose is to regulate, control, supervise or 
prohibit negulated sporting events such as professional boxing contests within the City of Richmond. 
The Commission is a not-for-profit organization, and is a tax.exempt entity, under Section 149 of the 
Income Tax Act 

2 SUMMAFlY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Revenue recognition 

License fees, event fees and broadcast fees are recognized as revenue upon the completion of the 
related ellent. 

Financial instruments 

The Commission has adopted CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments, This standard 
requires ,all financial instruments within its scope to be included on the organization's statement of 
financial position and measured either at fair value or, in certain circumstances when fair value may 
not be ccmsidered most relevant, at cost or amortized cost. Changes in fair value, if any. are to be 
recogniZE!d in the statements of revenue and expenditures and net assets. 

All financial instruments are classified into one of the fOllowing five categories: held for trading, held 
to maturity, loans and receivables, available-far-sale financial assets, or other financial liabilities. 
Initial ancl subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in the value of financial instruments 
depends on their initial classification. 

The Commission's financial instruments consIst of cash and net refundable security deposits 
received from Promoters. It is management's opinion that the Commission is not exposed to 
significant interest, currency or credit risks ariSing from these financial instruments. 

In accordance with this new standard, the Commission has classified its financial instruments as 
follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as held for trading. 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters are classified as other financial 
liabilities. 

Measurement uncertainty 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accountir,lg principles. The precise value of many assets and liabilities is dependent on future events. 
As a result, the preparation of financial statements for a period involves the use of approximations 
which have been made using careful judgement. Actual results could differ from those 
approximations. 

(continues) 

BLUE FISH GROUP 
C .. . . ' ~ R . C .C C Ou .... .. .. 

6 
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RICHMOND ATHLETIC COMMISSION 

Notes to Financia l Statements 

Period Ended December 31, 2008 

(Unaudited) 

2. SUMMAHY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters 

The Commission receives, in trust, refundable security deposits from Promoters of boxing events. 
These deposits serve to secure the Promotars' obligations in relation to the respective event These 
deposits are disbursed by the Commission, on behalf of the Promoters, to various parties such as the 
athletes, referees, judges, timekeepers, medical personnel, ambulances and other event 
expenditures. The refundable security deposits received by the Commission are not considered 
revenue to the Commission. Similarly, the disbursements of funds on behalf of the Promoters are 
not considered expenditures of the Commission. The net refundable security deposits received from 
Promoters represents the net excess of funds received over disbursements as at the year-end. 

3. DONATED SERVICES 

The Commission receives voluntal)' services in conducting some of its activities. Donated services 
of a nonoojremunerative nature are not recognized in these financial statements. 

4. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 

The prior year's figures were audited, with no reservation provided on the auditor's report, dated 
October :~4 , 2008. 

5. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

The Commission is economically dependent on license fee income and event fee income from 
regulated sporting events. These events mayor may not take place in the City of Richmond in a 
given fiscal year. 

B LUE FISH GROUP 
c" • • , . ~ ~ c .CCOYNT AN T$ 

7 
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ATTACHMENT 2 

Richmond Athletic Commission 
Unaudite,d Statement of Financial Position 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010 

ASSETS 

Total Cash 

LIABILITY 

Current Liabilities 
Net refundablE! security deposits 
received from Promoters' 

NET ASSETS 

Total Net Assets 

Richmondl Athletic Commission 

2010 

14,482 

14,482 

14,482 

2009 

13,683 

1,500 

12,183 

13,683 

Unauditedl Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and Net Assets 
For the Y,'ar Ended December 31, 2010 

2010 
REVENUE 

Event Fee 1,500 

License Fee 1,080 
Promoters Fee 150 

TOTAL REVENUE 2,730 

EXPENSE 

Membershi~' Expense 350 
Interest & Bank Charges 40 

TOT AL EXPEN~SE 390 

Income From Clperations 2,340 

Other Income (Expenses) 

Foreign Exchange Galnl(Loss) (41) 

Interest Revenue 1 
(41) 

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITUReS 2.299 

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Period 12,183 

NET ASSETS· End of Period 14,482 

3410566 

2009 

3,000 

1,135 

300 
4.435 

350 
46 

396 

4,040 

(232) 

1 
(232) 

3.808 

8.375 

12 ,1 83 
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ATTACHMENT 2 

Richmondl Athletic Commission 
Unauditedl Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Yetar Ended December 31, 2010 2010 2009 

Cash Flows from (used in) Operating Activities 

Excess of reve!,\ue over expenditures 2.299 3,808 

Changes in non--cash working capital 

Net refundable security deposits received from Promoters P,SOD) 1,500 

Cash flow from (used by) operating activites 799 5,308 

Increase in Ca~;h and Cash Equivalents 799 5.308 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 13,683 8.375 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 14,482 13,683 

3410566 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

To: Date: January 3rd 2012 

From: 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Committee 

Mike Redpath File: 08-4040-08-01 /2011-
Senior Manager, Parks Vol 01 

Re: Incubator Fanning 

Staff Recommendation 

That: 

1. The license of approximately 4.5 acres of land at 13871 No.3 Road and 13891 No.3 Road 
to th(! Richmond Food Security Soc iety for the purposes of incubator farming at a rental rate 
of $250 per acre per year for a three-year term be approved as identified in the attached 
report, Incubator Farming, from the Senior Manager, Parks. 

2. Staff be authorized to take all necessary steps to complete all matters detailed herein 
including authorizing the Chief Administrative Officer and the General Manager, Parks and 
Recn~ation to negotiate and execute all documentation required to effect the transaction . 

3 . Staff continue to work with Kwantlen Polytechnic University to identiry and secure the use 
of both public and private lands for the purposes of incubator Fann ing in re lation to its Fann 
School program. 

4. That $12,000 be allocated from the Council Contingency Fund to the Richmond Food 
Security Society (RFSS) should its application to the Real Estate Foundation of Be for a 
grant of $35,000 to support the RFSS's Richmond Foodlands Strategic Plan be successful. 

Jv~k~~ 
Senior Manager, Parks 
(604-247-4942) 

All. 4 

FOR ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

ROUTED To: 
Real Estate Services 
Law 

CONCURRENCE 
Y I<I'N 0 
Y~ND 
Y 1i!.,N 0 
Y0ND 

F !:,RAL MANAGER 

Risk ManagE!ment 
Water Services 
REVIEWED BY TAG 

3381720 

NO NO 

o o 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

On January 7th 2010, the City received a letter (attachment I) from a group called the South 
Dyke Fanner's Collective. This letter included a request for use ofland at the south end of 
Gi lbert Road for the purposes of collective, organic, 'incubator farming ' - short-term, small plot 
farming. While the South Dyke larmer's Collective no longer exists, the Richmond Food 
Security Soci.ety (RFSS) took on its request. 

Kwantlen Polyteclmic University. through its Farm School program, has also requested land for 
incubator farming for its program graduates (attachment 2). 

The purpose of this report is to advise Council of the two current requests for city-owned 
farmland and seek Council's approval for formalizing, through and agreement, the use of 
approximately 4.5 acres of land at 13871 No.3 Road (which includes a portion of 13891 No.3 
Road) to partially satisfy these requests without limiting future opportunities for the entire site . 

This report responds to Council' s term goal of demonstrating leadership in and significant 
advancement of the City'S agenda for sustainability. 

Analysis 

13871 No.3 Road and 12891 No. 3 Road 

On August 8" 1988, Council approved the acquisition of 56 aces of agricultural land located at 
13871 No.3 Road and 13891 No.3 Road (map: attachment 3) for $l.lM. The parcel is in the 
Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) and was acquired utilizing the parkland acquisition 
development cost charge open space reserve fund and capital reserve. The original rationale for 
purcbasing the property was to preserve the existing features of the site, promote the agricultural 
heritage of the area and to add to the continuWTI of recreational uses along the South Arm of the 
f raser. The sites uses are limited by the parcel 's ALR designation. 

Since 1988, local fanners have actively farmed approximately 27 acres of the site and pay the 
property taxe:s fo r the site. Currently, the ditches are being cleared to improve drainage for the 
overall health of the land. This will also help improve the growing conditions on the site. 

Additional uSes that have been approved over time include the following: 

• Statutory right of way for Metro Vancouver sewage treatment plant (1993 - present) 
• City Tree Nursery (1995 - present) 
• West Coast Seeds - seed trial (1998 - 2003) 
• National Equestrian Events (August 2001, August 2004) 
• Tall Ships Event (August 2002) 
• South Dyke Commwlity Garden - 39 plots (2003 - present) 
• Richmond Fruit Tree Sharing Project Garden & Orchard (2004 - present) 
• Twin Oaks Farm - temporary event site on 7 - 10 acres (2004 - present) 
• Trees for Tomorrow Grove (2009 - present) 
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There are approximately 4.5 acres of land within the parcel that are currently not being used for a 
specific-purpose. Since the spring of 20 11, the Richmond Food Security Society has undertaken 
responsibility [or farming 2.5 acres of this unallocated space. 

The parcel at 13871 No.3 Rd and 13891 No.3 Road is one of the largest contiguous City 
properties in the ALR. As such, many future, potential uses have been identified for use of the 
site within its ALR designation and other users have come forward. Some of these include the 
use of the methane waste energy from the MetroVancouver sewage treatment plant. 

Incubator Frunning 

Both the Richmond Food Security Society and Kwantlen Polytechnic University have provided 
requests for the City-to support Incubator Fanning. In the case of RFSS, the purpose is to 
provide farmers in Richmond an opportunity to learn the business of farming in a supportive and 
economically viable environment - without having to make a large capital investment. In the 
case ofKw'IDltlcn Polytechnic University, the purpose is to offer students in its Farm School 
program an opportunity to complete their education in an applied marmer. While it is 
challenging to find a textbook definition of the concept, incubator farming programs that exist in 
North America 1 generally share the following common attributes: 

• Land is provided (at no, low or market rent) by municipalities, regional governments or 
conservation organizations 

• Land is leased or licensed to a non-profit umbrella organization 
• Small parcels of land are allocated, through a rigorous selection process, by the umbrella 

orgaruization to new farmers 
• Term limits arc placed on the individual frumers' tenancy at the site 
• Resources such as equipment and tools are shared collectively 
• Orgamic fanning is required 
• Farm sales, agro-tourism, and food basket-type programs support the farmers fmancially 
• There is a teaching and/or research component on-site 

Incubator farming is not meant to significantly impact the sales opportunities for farmers in an 
existing marlket. It is meant to promote local fanning and provide a learning environment. One 
key factor identified is selecting participants that show the least potential for negatively 
impacting existing local agricultural producers. 

1 Haliburton Fann in Saanich, FarmStart in Brampton, ON and the ALBA Farm in Monterey County, CA are 
examples of existing, successful incubator farm sites. 
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Richmond Food Security Society 

The Richmond Food Security Society is a registered non-profit organization. Its mandate is as 
follows: 

"That all people in the community, at all times, have access to nutritious, safe, personally 
acceptable and culturally appropriate foods, produced in ways that arc environmentally sound 
and socially j ust." 

The RFSS is funded through programming and grants from a number of organizations including 
Vancouver Coastal Health. Its programs include an annual World Food Day event, production of 
the local food guidc and management of administration and education for the City of 
Richmond' s Community Gardens program. 

Currcntly opl;!rating as a pilot, the RFSS proposal is that seven plots be identified on the 4.5 acres 
of City land at the South Dyke for incubator fanning. The purpose of the proposal is to help new 
fanners overl;ome some of the challenges of entering the farming profession such as the capital 
cost of land, cost of equipment and the lack of opportunitics to share learning and infonnation 
with other farmers. 

In the spring of 201 1, the RFSS was successful in securing a $50,000 grant from VanCily to fund 
this pilot projcct. The funds were used to purchase a walk-behind tractor, hire a coordinator, and 
develop an urban farming toolkit. "Ibc RFSS, in consultation with City staff, allocated five. 
approximately Yz acre plots to Richmond-based farmers. These fanners, as expected, had 
varying degr';!cs of success in fanning their plots and experienced challenges with flooding, 
drainage and irrigation. All participants, however, would like to enter into a longer-tenn 
endeavour. 

Kwantlen Polytechnic University Farm School 

The Richmond Farm School is a product of Kwantlen' s Lnstitutc for Sustainable Horticulture. In 
December 2008, Council endorsed the following: 

"That the City 0/ Richmond endorse Kwantlen Polytechnic University and the Richmond Food 
Security Task Force's concept a/ the Richmond Farm School as an important component/or the 
agricultural sector in the region. " 

In 2009, staff encouraged Kwantien to work with the Richmond Fruit Tree Sharing Farm to use 
the lands already fanned at Terra Nova Rural Park for the purposes of its initial Farm School 
operations. The Farm School completed its second successful year of operations at Terra Nova 
in Novemberl011 and has graduated 16 students over two years. It is now sceking an additional 
1 0 acres of dedicated land to meet the ongoing educational needs of the program in regards to 
applied learning through incubator fanning. 
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Other Lands 

Both current requests for incubator fanning land have identified the City-owned property at the 
South Dyke as a desired location. This location is the most easily identifiable and immediately 
useful parcel of city-owned land for this purpose. The park master plan for the Fantasy Garden 
site also includes an urban agriculture component and, when the park is further developed, could 
be available for incubator fann ing. In addition, both groups have been encouraged to look for 
opportunities with private land-owners to meet their needs . As it is particularly clear that 
Kwantlen's request for 20 acres cannot be met at the South Dyke, staff can continue to work with 
them to ident.ify both private and/or public lands for additional usc. 

The RFSS is currently in the process of applying for a grant from the Real Estate Foundation of 
BC (REFBC) to support a study that will assess Richmond's potential food lands and develop a 
strategic plan to increase food production in Richmond over the next three years. This study will 
help identify lands available for incubator and other types of urban agriculture. The RFSS has 
conunitted $"\5,000 of its own funding to the study and is requesting that the City contribute 
$12,000 in cash and $2,000 in-kind (staff time and meeting rentals) to support its grant 
application for $35.000 to the REFBC. The funding is available in the Council Contingency 
fund. 

Agreement 

There are approximately 4.5 acres ofland that could be incubator-fanned at 13871 No.3 Road 
and 13891 No.3 Road without impacting significantly on current uses of the site. In order to 
ensure future City needs for the lands are not limited, it is important to restrict the terms of any 
incubator farming license for usc of the site to short-term. It is suggested that the Richmond 
Food Security Society incubator farming program which is already operating a pilot at this site 
be licensed to use this land with the proviso that at least three plots at any given time are 
reserved for students graduating from the Kwantlen Farm School program. 

The market rental rate for the approximate 4.5 acres is $250 per acre pcr annum, which rate 
includes property taxes. All other costs of operation are at the cost of the licensee. The tenn of 
the agreement is three years. 

Access to walter at the site for irrigation purposes can be provided by either ditch water and/or 
metered water. It will be the responsibility of the RFSS to detennine an irrigation system most 
suited to its proposed program. The City will make available physical access to the ditch and/or 
make arrangt:ments for metered water at the licensee ' s cost. The approximate cost for 
installation of the meter is $340.00 (refundable deposit) and the metered water rate is $1.1175 
per cubic meter. 

Additional business terms are included in Anachment 4. 
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Financiallm.pact 

The City will receive approximately $1,125 annually for the license ofthe land. These funds will 
be deposited to the Rental Properties f~d . $12,000 from the Council Contingency fund can 
support the RFSS' s study on Richmond Foodlands, should its grant application to the Real Estate 
Foundation of BC be successful. 

Conclusion 

Incubator farming is an important step in providing new fanners with a supportive, cost-effective 
environment in which to learn the profession. Licensing approximately 4.5 acres at 13871 No. 3 
Road and 13891 No.3 Road will support this initiative without limiting future opportunities for 
the City. 

Serena Lusk 
Manager, Prurks Programs 
(604-233-3344) 

SL:sl 
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South Dyke Fanners Collective 
c/o 8480 Dayton Court 
Richmond, BC 
V6Y 3H6 

A TIN: Dave Semple 

Re: South Dyke 5 acre parcel 

Dear Mr. Semple, 

Attachment 1 

January 7, 2010 

The South Dyke Farmers Collective is a cooperative of growers that would like to access 
City-owned fannland at the south end of Gilbert Rd, east of the Sharing Farm's Orchard. 
We are a group that is committed to growing food for the residents of Richmond and can 
ofTer over 40 years of organic food growing expertise. 

Our members have committed to the following: 

J. To grow food organically 
2. To purchase equipment cooperatively 
3. To mentOr future fanners and help them develop their own business plans 
4. To enable the Fruit Tree Project to extends its orchard 
5. To provide a dividend to members, should a profit be made 
6. To educate the public in organic food production practices 

We would like to take this opportunity to invite the City of Richmond and the Richmond 
Fruit Tree Project to become members of the Collective so that we can jointly make 
decisions on land allocation, irrigation, and support each others ' endeavours. 

One question that was asked of us was to estimate how much water we might need for the 
site. Doing a simple calculation of 15 weeks of watering at 0.75 inches per watering, 
we' ve estimated that the entire 5 acres could potentially require 5,700 cubic meters per 
year. We believe this is far beyond what we will requi re but we believe it's better to err 
on the side of caution. 

We would appreciate if the following could be answered: 

1. With the water calculation in mind, could you give us a rough estimate of what 
in:igation costs might be like so that we can include them into our business plans? 
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2. When might be the earliest we could sit down with the City and all the partners 
and figure out how to divide the parcel? 

3. Are there any other issues we need to keep in mind before we proceed? 

We are VC!ry excited to be able to bring 5 new farms into Richmond and look forward to 
working with the City and the Richmond Fruit Tree Project to the benefit of alL 

Sincerely. 

Members of the South Dyke Fanners Collective 

Susan Le,e Hem, Richmond Urban Fanners 
Luc Collette, Richmond Urban Farmers 
Arzeena Hamir P.Ag., Richmond Urban Fanners 
Zacbrey HeImberger, White Rock Natural Farm 
Giacomo (Jack) Miro, Purplesun Urban Fanning and Edible Landscaping. 
Ward TeuJon, City Fann Boy Ventures 
Craig He:ighway, Kitsilano Fanns Ltd. 
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Attachment 2 

KWANTLEN 
POLYTECHNIC 
UNIVERSITY 

MAILING ADDRESS 

12666-72 Ave, Surrey, BC 

Canada v3w 2M8 

October 29-, 2011 

To: City of Hichmond 
cia Sere~na Lusk, Parks and Recreation 

Kwantlen Polytechnic University's Richmond Farm School has been successfully educating new 
fanners at the Terra Nova Rural Park with the support of the City of Richmond since January 
2010. The program has provided students with the essential science and business skills in order 
to become involved in small-scale, sustainable agricultural projects. As of November 2011 , 
sixteen full-time students will have successfully completed the program and we are preparing for 
the 2012 year where we expect we will attract an even greater number of students. 

Though the central part of our program is the 10 month term, the second phase of the students' 
education tclkes place on their own farms. Land availability is a central issue for new farmers, so 
through the support of Kwantlen, they are able to continue their learning experience with some 
security. As initially proposed, all students who complete the program are elig ible for up to a half 
acre parcel of incubator farm land. These plots are available for 3-year terms during which the 
students pr':lctice their ski lls, develop their businesses and receive continuing support from the 
Farm School through shared tools and mentorship. Students are free to operate these plots as 
commercial for-profit businesses and expected to follow all rules and regulations governing their 
enterprises. At the end of the 3-year term, the students give their plot to the next student in line 
and move to a new location to continue growing thei r business. Through this program, new 
farmers will have support during those first few difficult years. 

At the outset of this program, we partnered with the City to help provide land and support the 
gro'Nth of new sustainable agriculture in Richmond. At th is time, we are asking the City of 
Richmond t() provide the following: 

• 20 acres of agricultural land - to support this program for all future incubator farmers, 
the Farm School will need a maximum of 20 acres to rotate students through their 3-year 
terms. The land does not need to be in one parcel , however, fewer parcels would be 
more financially practical for the Farm School program. 

• Water access - sites must have water access, whether through wells or City lines. 

• Road access - sites must be accessible by vehicle in order to allow for agricultural 
machinery, delivery of amendments and transportation of produce. 

Lands will not need to be provided at one time. Ideally, 5 acres a year provide adequate plots 
for students. The Farm School wililease/licence the land directly from the City and manage the 
incubator plots to ensure students are adhering to good practices as well as vacating their plots 
when promised. Students will pay a lease at the appropriate agricultural rate as part oltheir 
regular business expenses to the City of Richmond. The Fann School will provide onsite secure 

T 604.599.2100 kwantlen.ca 
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KWANTLEN 
POLYTECHNIC 
UNIVERSITY 

MAIUNG ADDRESS 

12666-72 Ave, Surrey, Be 

Canado V3W 2MB 

storage for all equipment, however, incubator farmers will erect only temporary structures such 
as hoop houses and trellises. The school is also developing guidelines for occupancy, including 
annual reports from students as well as best practices. 

We hope that you will continue your support of this program at this critical stage. We anticipate 
10-15 students in the 2012 year and many of them wi ll look to 2013 to begin their incubator 
farming terms. We hope to see them enrich local municipal lands and the agricultural economy 
with your help. 

Thank you, 

Anna Railings 

Farm School Coordinator 
KwantJen P10lytechnic University 

Kent Mullinbc: 
Director of the Institute for Sustainable Horticulture 
Kwantlen Polytechnic University 

T 604.599.2100 kwanHen.ca 
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ATTACHMENT 4 

Business Terms for Agreement with Richmond Food Security Society for Incubator Fanning at 
13871 No.3 Road and 13891 No.3 Road 

Term 3 years 

Commencement Date: To be determined, but before April 1, 2012 

Licensee Richmond Food Security Society 

Rental Rate $250 per acre per annum 

Property T a .... :es Payable by the City. 

Improvements Temporary improvements such as storage units, greenhouses, garbage and 
composting bins may be allowed with prior written pennission by the Cit)' and 
provided they arc appropriately pennitted. 

Penn itted Us.e The licensee is pennitted to engage in the organic growing of plants and 
vegetables excluding trees. Herbicides, insecticides, chemical fertilizers, 
animal poisons and non-organic materials, including treated wood, are not 
permitted. 

Sales No sales are permitted onsite. 

Insurance $5 million commercial general liability listing the City of Richmond and its 
employees as an additional insured. 

Water Services The licensee is responsible for irrigation of the site. The City will prov ide 
access to the adjacent ditch and J or make arrangements for metered water at 
the cost of the Licensce. 

Park ing Parking is not permitted in the license area. Commercial sal es and event 
parking must be approved in writing by the City . 

Farming Supplies Farming supplies such as soil, seeds, and fanning equipment are to be 
provided by the licensee at its own cost. 

Waste Waste, recycling and composting is the cost and responsibi lity of the licensee. 

Tennination Either party may, without cause, tenninate this agreement on 30 days' notice 

Representatkm The licensee must not act as the City' S representative in any matter and 
particularly with the media 

Partnership No partnership is implied. 

Recognition The City must' be recognized as a supporter in all marketing materials and 
communications rclatcd to the Richmond Food Security Society. 

Special Events Special Events requirc prior written approval from the City which may be 
withheld or denied at the City's sale discretion. Six weeks notice is required. 

Selection of Fanners A criteria for selection will be developed and agrced upon by the licensee and 
the City and will consider the potential negative impact on existing local 
fanners; at least three farmers must be graduates of Kwantlen Polytechnic 
University' s (KPU) Richmond Fann School program as determined by KPU. 

Annual Reporting An annual report is rcquired including financial statements and a summary of 
operations. 
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